
MYRTLE CREEK CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

MYRTLE CREEK COUNCIL CHAMBER 

AGENDA PACKET 08/15/2023 

All city public meetings are being digitally recorded for sound and video camera surveillance. 

The City Council of the City of Myrtle Creek will meet on Tuesday, August 15, 2023 at 5:30 PM in the 
Myrtle Creek Council Chamber, 207 NW Pleasant Street, Myrtle Creek, Oregon. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance 
of the meeting to the City Recorder at 541-863-3171. 

The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and 
discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the study session and or/meeting. 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – 5:30 PM 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the City 
Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the meeting place. Anyone commenting on a 
subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the “Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items” section of the 
agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by the City 
Council. 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Presentations – Items that do not require immediate council action, such as
presentations, discussions of potential future action items.
3.1 South Umpqua School District Update

4. Consent Agenda – Requires a motion
The consent agenda consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single
action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered
separately upon request.

Consent Agenda Part 1 – Requires a motion
4.1 Approval of minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting for July 18, 2023

Page 1 of 80



 Consent Agenda Part 2 – Requires a motion 
 4.2 Acknowledge receipt of Payroll & Claims Report for July 2023 

5. Department Reports 
 Items for discussion by the City Administrator and Department Heads as needed.  
 5.1     Planning/Community Development Report 
 5.2 Finance Officer Report 
 5.3 Police Department Report 
 5.4 Fire Department Report 
 5.5 Public Works Report 

6. Regular Agenda 
Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given 
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. Action 
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances. 
6.1  Stevenson Paving Project 
6.2 Friends of the Myrtle Creek Library Donation Request 
6.3 Council Position for Park Commission 

7. Ordinances & Resolutions 
Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given 
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. Action 
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances. 
7.1  Ordinance No. 853 – FIRST READ – An Ordinance Granting Avista Corporation, D/B/A 
Avista Utilities, A Washington Corporation, Its Successors And Assigns, The Nonexclusive 
Right, Privilege, Authority And Franchise To Locate, Construct, Install, Own, Maintain, Repair, 
Replace, Extend, Operate And Use Facilities In, Upon, Over, Under, Along, And Across The 
Franchise Area For Purposes Of The Transmission, Distribution And Sale Of Gas. 
 
7.2 Resolution 23-12 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Of Myrtle Creek To Apply For A 
Department Of Land Conservation And Development Housing Planning Assistance Grant  

8. Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items 

9. City Administrator Report 
  
10. Mayor and Councilor – Committee Reports and Councilor Comments 

11. Executive Session  
The Myrtle Creek City Council may go into Executive Session. If an Executive Session is called 
to order, the appropriate ORS citation will be announced identifying the applicable statute. All 
discussions are confidential and those present may disclose nothing from the Session. 
Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS 

Page 2 of 80



192.660 but must not disclose any information discussed. No Executive Session may be held for 
the purpose of taking any final action or making any final decision. Executive Sessions are 
closed to the public. 

12. Adjournment 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 80



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
July 18, 2023 
Page 1 of 4 
 

CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

DATE:    July 18, 2023 

PLACE: Council Chambers, 207 NW Pleasant St., Myrtle Creek, Oregon 

PRESIDING OFFICER: Council President Susan Harris 

COUNCILORS PRESENT: Councilors: Robert Chaney, Sr., Luke Dillon, Diana Larson, Susan 
Harris, Bill Burnett 

COUNCILORS ABSENT: Matthew Hald 

 A quorum was present throughout the meeting. 

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: City Administrator Lonnie Rainville, City Recorder Joanna 
Bilbrey, Police Chief Jonathan Brewster 

CALL TO ORDER: Council President Susan Harris called the July 18 , 2023 meeting 
to order at 5:30 PM 

PUBLIC PRESENTATION 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Parts I & II 

Motion was made by Councilor Burnett and seconded by Councilor Dillon to approve Consent Agenda 
Parts I & II as presented in the July 18, 2023 council packet. Discussion: None 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
Planning Department 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville submitted the Community Development Department report into 
record as written. 

Finance Report 
Finance Report submitted into record as written. 

Page 4 of 80



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
July 18, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 
 

Police Department 
Police Chief Jonathan Brewster submitted the Police Department Report into record as written. 

Fire Department 
Fire Department report submitted into record as written. 

Public Works 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville submitted the Public Works report into record as written. New 
signage was requested for the entrance and exit to Evergreen Park.  

REGULAR AGENDA 
On Street Parking of Trailers 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared with City Council that there has been discussion about the 
number of RV’s that are being parked on the streets. Chief Jonathan Brewster spoke to Council 
regarding on street parking of RV’s and City Code. Council suggested that we begin by educating the 
public. Chief Brewster suggested a letter to the public in the water bills to give the public notice that RV 
Parking code enforcement is going to be enforced. Suggested that it be announced at the Community 
Meeting as well.  

No motion necessary 

Modified Cash Accounting 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared with Council the letter from the City Auditor which 
recommends that the City move to a modified cash accounting style to avoid some of the new 
requirements by the GASB. The City Administrator and the Finance Officer also met with Business 
Oregon to verify that the City’s ability to receive loans and grants would not be effected by switching 
the accounting style. 

Motion was made by Councilor Burnett to approve the City to move from modified accrual basis of 
accounting to modified cash accounting. Motion was seconded by Councilor Larson. Discussion: none 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

Memorial Items Police 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared the Parks Commission recommendation to allow the City to 
accept memorial benches and other approved items to be placed in the parks.  

Motion was made by Councilor Larson to allow donated memorial items to be placed in City parks in 
accordance with the presented policy. Motion was seconded by Councilor Chaney. Discussion: none 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

Park Commission Presentation – Cover for Pickleball Court 
Park Commission Vice Chair Linda Connel presented to Council the concept of adding a pavilion cover 

Page 5 of 80



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
July 18, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 
 

over the tennis and pickleball court. The Park Commission voted to move the concept to City Council 
with the recommendation to allow the City to explore pricing  and grants. 

Motion was made by Councilor Burnett to approve the initial concept of the Evergreen Park tennis and 
pickleball court(s) pavilion and allow City staff and the Park Commission to begin design work and 
develop cost estimates for the project. Motion was seconded by Councilor Larson. Discussion: none 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

Millsite Park Nature Trail Expansion Concept 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared a concept drawing of an expanded trail through Millsite 
Park. The concept was accepted by the Park Commission with the recommendation of sending it to 
Council for further review. Tonight’s request is for approval to explore costs and look for available 
grants.  

Motion was made by Councilor Larson to approve the initial concept of the Millsite Park walking path 
expansion project and allow City Staff to begin design work and develop cost estimates for the project. 
Motion was seconded by Councilor Dillon. Discussion: The trail expansion will be discussed at the 
Community meeting for public input.  
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

CITIZENS HEARD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Julie Sproul spoke to Council to revisit the issue of the rabbits being let go by the Rodeo. Council 
reviewed a draft letter that will be sent to the Rodeo Board addressing the issue. Consensus from the 
Council was to send a letter to the Rodeo Board in regards to the rabbits.  

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville has started working with Avista on the Franchise Agreement 
renewal. Our new employee has started, he will be working two days a week in parks and three days a 
week in public works. The Community page on the City website is being worked on with local 
attractions and restaurants listed. Aviva Health is having an open house on Augsut 8th at the Elks Lodge. 
House Bill 3395 has passed and expanded to municipalities with 2500 or more residents to allow 
duplexes in R1 zoning. 

MAYOR AND COUNCILOR – COMMITTEE REPORTS and COUNCILOR COMMENTS 
Councilor Chaney went to the Sutherlin Throw Down and it was well attended. We have a resident 
working on bringing something similar to Myrtle Creek. Summer Festival is starting next week on the 
27th. Reminder that there is only one Council meeting in August on the 15th.  

ADJOURNMENT 
Council President Susan Harris adjourned the regular meeting of the City Council for July 18, 2023 at 
6:50 P.M. 

Page 6 of 80



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
July 18, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

     ______________________________ 
     Matthew Hald, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 
Joanna Bilbrey 
City Recorder 

 

 

Page 7 of 80



 
FUND FUND     

# DESCRIPTION BILLS P/R TOTAL

100 GENERAL FUND 224,440.98  23,728.85             248,169.83     
200 SEWER FUND 106,102.19  41,450.01             147,552.20     
210 SEWER CONSTRUCTION 131,950.39  -                        131,950.39     
250 WATER FUND 64,462.15    26,874.60             91,336.75       
255 METER DEPOSITS -               -                        -                  
260 WATER CONSTRUCTION -               -                        -                  
280 AIRPORT FUND 892.76         -                        892.76            
300 STREET FUND 21,912.98    11,298.02             33,211.00       
430 WWTP REPAY FUND -               -                        -                  
450 WTP E RES DEBT FUND -               -                        -                  
500 PARK DEVELOPMENT 2,651.86      -                        2,651.86         
550 RV PARK 1,131.52      -                        1,131.52         
580 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND -               -                        -                  

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 553,544.83  103,351.48           -        656,896.31     

CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK
PAYROLL AND CLAIMS

JULY ~~ 2023

Page 8 of 80



Page 9 of 80



Page 10 of 80



Page 11 of 80



Page 12 of 80



Page 13 of 80



Page 14 of 80



Page 15 of 80



Page 16 of 80



Page 17 of 80



Page 18 of 80



Page 19 of 80



Page 20 of 80



Community Development Department 
Monthly Report 

August 15, 2023 

July General Planning Statistics: 
1 Sign Permit 

1 Planning Clearance  

 Accessory Building 

 

Significant Planning Activities: 
 

 

Klimback Ln Sub-Division 

The final plan from Pacific Power was accepted. The contractor is staging to 
begin installation of electrical services in the subdivision. 

 

Tessia’s Hill Estates Sub-Division 

Knife River continues to make significant progress on the excavation work for 
the new sub-division. They are continuing with cut and fill of the property.  
Utility installation has begun. Sewer main lines and manholes are being 
installed. Water line and storm line are staged on site.  

 

Code Amendment to comply with HB 3395 

Began reviewing existing codes to determine what will need to be amended to 
comply with the requirements outlined in HB 3395.  Identified there will need 
to be amendment also made to the City’s Comprehensive plan.   

Communicating with DLCD to pursue funding to support the work needed to 
meet the requirements of HB 3395.  Currently working on budget and 
completing grant application to submit to DLCD. 

Page 21 of 80



General Ledger

Budget Status

User: lhiscocks
Printed: 8/9/2023 -  1:49 PM
Period: 1, 2024

Account Number Description Budget Amount Period Amount YTD Amount YTD Var Available % Available

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND
Dept 100-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 101,355.26 101,355.26 4,119,200.74 4,119,200.74 97.60
Revenue Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 101,355.26 101,355.26 4,119,200.74 4,119,200.74 97.60
Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -4,220,556.00 -101,355.26 -101,355.26 -4,119,200.74

Dept 100-0100 FIRE DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 53,600.00 -13,248.38 -13,248.38 66,848.38 66,848.38 124.72
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 128,910.00 2,435.63 2,435.63 126,474.37 126,474.37 98.11
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 5,500.00 0.00 0.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 100.00
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 45,000.00 0.00 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 100.00
Expense Sub Totals: 233,010.00 -10,812.75 -10,812.75 243,822.75 243,822.75 104.64

Dept 0100 Sub Totals: 233,010.00 -10,812.75 -10,812.75 243,822.75

Dept 100-0200 MUNICIPAL COURT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 63,558.00 3,989.25 3,989.25 59,568.75 59,568.75 93.72
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 87,400.00 4,773.79 4,773.79 82,626.21 82,626.21 94.54
Expense Sub Totals: 150,958.00 8,763.04 8,763.04 142,194.96 142,194.96 94.20

Dept 0200 Sub Totals: 150,958.00 8,763.04 8,763.04 142,194.96

Dept 100-0300 LIBRARY DEPT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 11,100.00 351.28 351.28 10,748.72 10,748.72 96.84
Expense Sub Totals: 11,100.00 351.28 351.28 10,748.72 10,748.72 96.84

Dept 0300 Sub Totals: 11,100.00 351.28 351.28 10,748.72

Dept 100-0500 PARKS DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 164,356.00 11,163.01 11,163.01 153,192.99 153,192.99 93.21
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 61,050.00 5,728.40 5,728.40 55,321.60 55,321.60 90.62
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00
Expense Sub Totals: 230,406.00 16,891.41 16,891.41 213,514.59 213,514.59 92.67

Dept 0500 Sub Totals: 230,406.00 16,891.41 16,891.41 213,514.59

Page 22 of 80



Dept 100-0510 COMMUNITY CENTER
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 10,350.00 405.05 405.05 9,944.95 9,944.95 96.09
Expense Sub Totals: 10,350.00 405.05 405.05 9,944.95 9,944.95 96.09

Dept 0510 Sub Totals: 10,350.00 405.05 405.05 9,944.95

Dept 100-0550 GENERAL EQUIPMENT
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00
Expense Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00

Dept 0550 Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00

Dept 100-0600 SWIM POOL
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 66,940.00 22,549.22 22,549.22 44,390.78 44,390.78 66.31
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 23,500.00 6,053.53 6,053.53 17,446.47 17,446.47 74.24
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Expense Sub Totals: 90,440.00 28,602.75 28,602.75 61,837.25 61,837.25 68.37

Dept 0600 Sub Totals: 90,440.00 28,602.75 28,602.75 61,837.25

Dept 100-0700 POLICE DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 953,655.00 68,618.14 68,618.14 885,036.86 885,036.86 92.80
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 160,040.00 6,870.78 6,870.78 153,169.22 153,169.22 95.71
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Expense Sub Totals: 1,113,695.00 75,488.92 75,488.92 1,038,206.08 1,038,206.08 93.22

Dept 0700 Sub Totals: 1,113,695.00 75,488.92 75,488.92 1,038,206.08

Dept 100-0900 PUBLIC BUILDINGS
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 56,093.00 4,614.82 4,614.82 51,478.18 51,478.18 91.77
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 43,400.00 2,576.07 2,576.07 40,823.93 40,823.93 94.06
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 100.00
Expense Sub Totals: 102,493.00 7,190.89 7,190.89 95,302.11 95,302.11 92.98

Dept 0900 Sub Totals: 102,493.00 7,190.89 7,190.89 95,302.11

Dept 100-1000 PUBLIC WKS/SHOP
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 35,500.00 2,772.31 2,772.31 32,727.69 32,727.69 92.19
Expense Sub Totals: 35,500.00 2,772.31 2,772.31 32,727.69 32,727.69 92.19

Dept 1000 Sub Totals: 35,500.00 2,772.31 2,772.31 32,727.69

Page 23 of 80



Dept 100-1100 SUPPORT SERVICES
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 400,139.00 32,143.32 32,143.32 367,995.68 367,995.68 91.97
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 219,046.00 95,923.35 95,923.35 123,122.65 123,122.65 56.21
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 318,000.00 0.00 0.00 318,000.00 318,000.00 100.00
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 1,300,419.00 0.00 0.00 1,300,419.00 1,300,419.00 100.00

Dept 1100 Sub Totals: 2,237,604.00 128,066.67 128,066.67 2,109,537.33

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 101,355.26 101,355.26 4,119,200.74 4,119,200.74 97.60
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 257,719.57 257,719.57 3,962,836.43 3,962,836.43 93.89
Fund 100 Sub Totals: 0.00 156,364.31 156,364.31 -156,364.31

Fund 150 PUBLIC SAFETY FEE
Dept 150-0000
R1
150-0000-45001 PUBLIC SAFETY FEE 77,544.00 152.61 152.61 77,391.39 77,391.39 99.80

R1 Sub Totals: 77,544.00 152.61 152.61 77,391.39 77,391.39 99.80
Revenue Sub Totals: 77,544.00 152.61 152.61 77,391.39 77,391.39 99.80
Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -77,544.00 -152.61 -152.61 -77,391.39

Dept 150-1500
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 100.00
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 7,544.00 0.00 0.00 7,544.00 7,544.00 100.00
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 100.00

Dept 1500 Sub Totals: 77,544.00 0.00 0.00 77,544.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 77,544.00 152.61 152.61 77,391.39 77,391.39 99.80
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 77,544.00 0.00 0.00 77,544.00 77,544.00 100.00
Fund 150 Sub Totals: 0.00 -152.61 -152.61 152.61

Fund 200 SEWER FUND
Dept 200-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 146,269.62 146,269.62 2,202,580.38 2,202,580.38 93.77
Revenue Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 146,269.62 146,269.62 2,202,580.38 2,202,580.38 93.77

Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -2,348,850.00 -146,269.62 -146,269.62 -2,202,580.38

Dept 200-2000 SEWER MAINT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 194,931.00 16,934.76 16,934.76 177,996.24 177,996.24 91.31
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 224,045.00 23,959.06 23,959.06 200,085.94 200,085.94 89.31
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 100.00
Expense Sub Totals: 448,976.00 40,893.82 40,893.82 408,082.18 408,082.18 90.89

Dept 2000 Sub Totals: 448,976.00 40,893.82 40,893.82 408,082.18

Page 24 of 80



Dept 200-2100 SEWER PLANT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 340,896.00 25,696.36 25,696.36 315,199.64 315,199.64 92.46
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 438,526.00 53,614.48 53,614.48 384,911.52 384,911.52 87.77
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 170,000.00 26,833.80 26,833.80 143,166.20 143,166.20 84.22
Expense Sub Totals: 949,422.00 106,144.64 106,144.64 843,277.36 843,277.36 88.82
Dept 2100 Sub Totals: 949,422.00 106,144.64 106,144.64 843,277.36

Dept 200-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 950,452.00 0.00 0.00 950,452.00 950,452.00 100.00

Dept 9000 Sub Totals: 950,452.00 0.00 0.00 950,452.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 146,269.62 146,269.62 2,202,580.38 2,202,580.38 93.77
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 147,038.46 147,038.46 2,201,811.54 2,201,811.54 93.74
Fund 200 Sub Totals: 0.00 768.84 768.84 -768.84

Fund 210 SEWER CONSTRUCTION
Dept 210-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 7,158.35 7,158.35 1,933,395.65 1,933,395.65 99.63
Revenue Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 7,158.35 7,158.35 1,933,395.65 1,933,395.65 99.63

Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -1,940,554.00 -7,158.35 -7,158.35 -1,933,395.65

Dept 210-2200 SEWER CONSTRUCTION
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 1,300,000.00 131,950.39 131,950.39 1,168,049.61 1,168,049.61 89.85
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 640,554.00 0.00 0.00 640,554.00 640,554.00 100.00

Dept 2200 Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 131,950.39 131,950.39 1,808,603.61

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 7,158.35 7,158.35 1,933,395.65 1,933,395.65 99.63
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 131,950.39 131,950.39 1,808,603.61 1,808,603.61 93.20
Fund 210 Sub Totals: 0.00 124,792.04 124,792.04 -124,792.04

Fund 250 WATER FUND
Dept 250-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 106,098.02 106,098.02 1,875,401.98 1,875,401.98 94.65
Revenue Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 106,098.02 106,098.02 1,875,401.98 1,875,401.98 94.65

Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -1,981,500.00 -106,098.02 -106,098.02 -1,875,401.98

Dept 250-2300 WATER MAINT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 195,241.00 15,403.12 15,403.12 179,837.88 179,837.88 92.11
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 217,938.00 16,131.55 16,131.55 201,806.45 201,806.45 92.60
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 35,000.00 5,130.00 5,130.00 29,870.00 29,870.00 85.34
Expense Sub Totals: 448,179.00 36,664.67 36,664.67 411,514.33 411,514.33 91.82

Dept 2300 Sub Totals: 448,179.00 36,664.67 36,664.67 411,514.33
Page 25 of 80



Dept 250-2500 WATER PLANT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 185,584.00 12,576.21 12,576.21 173,007.79 173,007.79 93.22
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 215,149.00 41,866.12 41,866.12 173,282.88 173,282.88 80.54
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 38,000.00 0.00 0.00 38,000.00 38,000.00 100.00
Expense Sub Totals: 438,733.00 54,442.33 54,442.33 384,290.67 384,290.67 87.59

Dept 2500 Sub Totals: 438,733.00 54,442.33 54,442.33 384,290.67

Dept 250-2550 SPRINGBROOK PLANT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 3,875.00 147.33 147.33 3,727.67 3,727.67 96.20
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Expense Sub Totals: 3,875.00 147.33 147.33 3,727.67 3,727.67 96.20
Dept 2550 Sub Totals: 3,875.00 147.33 147.33 3,727.67

Dept 250-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 1,090,713.00 0.00 0.00 1,090,713.00 1,090,713.00 100.00

Dept 9000 Sub Totals: 1,090,713.00 0.00 0.00 1,090,713.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 106,098.02 106,098.02 1,875,401.98 1,875,401.98 94.65
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 91,254.33 91,254.33 1,890,245.67 1,890,245.67 95.39
Fund 250 Sub Totals: 0.00 -14,843.69 -14,843.69 14,843.69

Fund 255 WATER METER DEPOSITS
Dept 255-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 0.00 400.00 400.00 -400.00 -400.00 0.00
Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 400.00 400.00 -400.00 -400.00 0.00
Dept 0000 Sub Totals: 0.00 -400.00 -400.00 400.00

Dept 255-2400
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 2400 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 400.00 400.00 -400.00 -400.00 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund 255 Sub Totals: 0.00 -400.00 -400.00 400.00

Fund 260 WATER CONSTRUCTION
Dept 260-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 7,098.70 7,098.70 2,361,761.30 2,361,761.30 99.70
Revenue Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 7,098.70 7,098.70 2,361,761.30 2,361,761.30 99.70

Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -2,368,860.00 -7,098.70 -7,098.70 -2,361,761.30

Page 26 of 80



Dept 260-2600 WATER CONSTRUCTION
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 0.00 0.00 2,368,860.00 2,368,860.00 100.00
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 2600 Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 0.00 0.00 2,368,860.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 7,098.70 7,098.70 2,361,761.30 2,361,761.30 99.70
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 2,368,860.00 0.00 0.00 2,368,860.00 2,368,860.00 100.00
Fund 260 Sub Totals: 0.00 -7,098.70 -7,098.70 7,098.70

Fund 280 AIRPORT FUND
Dept 280-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 111,253.00 4,174.02 4,174.02 107,078.98 107,078.98 96.25
Revenue Sub Totals: 111,253.00 4,174.02 4,174.02 107,078.98 107,078.98 96.25
Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -111,253.00 -4,174.02 -4,174.02 -107,078.98

Dept 280-2800 AIRPORT DEPT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 24,100.00 892.76 892.76 23,207.24 23,207.24 96.30
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 100.00
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 67,153.00 0.00 0.00 67,153.00 67,153.00 100.00

Dept 2800 Sub Totals: 111,253.00 892.76 892.76 110,360.24

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 111,253.00 4,174.02 4,174.02 107,078.98 107,078.98 96.25
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 111,253.00 892.76 892.76 110,360.24 110,360.24 99.20
Fund 280 Sub Totals: 0.00 -3,281.26 -3,281.26 3,281.26

Fund 300 STREET FUND
Dept 300-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 35,744.50 35,744.50 1,439,179.50 1,439,179.50 97.58
Revenue Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 35,744.50 35,744.50 1,439,179.50 1,439,179.50 97.58

Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -1,474,924.00 -35,744.50 -35,744.50 -1,439,179.50

Dept 300-3000 STREET DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 125,808.00 11,717.14 11,717.14 114,090.86 114,090.86 90.69
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 172,612.00 21,045.83 21,045.83 151,566.17 151,566.17 87.81
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 365,000.00 0.00 0.00 365,000.00 365,000.00 100.00
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 811,504.00 0.00 0.00 811,504.00 811,504.00 100.00

Dept 3000 Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 32,762.97 32,762.97 1,442,161.03

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 35,744.50 35,744.50 1,439,179.50 1,439,179.50 97.58
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 32,762.97 32,762.97 1,442,161.03 1,442,161.03 97.78
Fund 300 Sub Totals: 0.00 -2,981.53 -2,981.53 2,981.53

Fund 330 STORM WATER FUND

Page 27 of 80



Dept 330-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 52,432.00 89.48 89.48 52,342.52 52,342.52 99.83
Revenue Sub Totals: 52,432.00 89.48 89.48 52,342.52 52,342.52 99.83

Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -52,432.00 -89.48 -89.48 -52,342.52

Dept 330-3300 STORM WATER DEPARTMENT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 13,750.00 0.00 0.00 13,750.00 13,750.00 100.00
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 100.00
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 28,682.00 0.00 0.00 28,682.00 28,682.00 100.00

Dept 3300 Sub Totals: 52,432.00 0.00 0.00 52,432.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 52,432.00 89.48 89.48 52,342.52 52,342.52 99.83
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 52,432.00 0.00 0.00 52,432.00 52,432.00 100.00
Fund 330 Sub Totals: 0.00 -89.48 -89.48 89.48

Fund 430 WWTP CONSTRUCTION DEBT REPAY
Dept 430-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 0000 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 430-4400 WWTP CONST REPAY
08 DEBT SERVICE

08 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Dept 4400 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 430-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 9000 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund 430 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund 450 WTP CONSTRUCTION DEBT REPAY
Dept 450-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 557,409.00 835.14 835.14 556,573.86 556,573.86 99.85
Revenue Sub Totals: 557,409.00 835.14 835.14 556,573.86 556,573.86 99.85

Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -557,409.00 -835.14 -835.14 -556,573.86

Page 28 of 80



Dept 450-4550 WTP CONSTRUCT REPAY
08 DEBT SERVICE

08 Sub Totals: 307,774.00 0.00 0.00 307,774.00 307,774.00 100.00
Expense Sub Totals: 307,774.00 0.00 0.00 307,774.00 307,774.00 100.00
Dept 4550 Sub Totals: 307,774.00 0.00 0.00 307,774.00

Dept 450-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 249,635.00 0.00 0.00 249,635.00 249,635.00 100.00

Dept 9000 Sub Totals: 249,635.00 0.00 0.00 249,635.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 557,409.00 835.14 835.14 556,573.86 556,573.86 99.85
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 557,409.00 0.00 0.00 557,409.00 557,409.00 100.00
Fund 450 Sub Totals: 0.00 -835.14 -835.14 835.14

Fund 500 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
Dept 500-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 250,508.00 1,604.10 1,604.10 248,903.90 248,903.90 99.36
Revenue Sub Totals: 250,508.00 1,604.10 1,604.10 248,903.90 248,903.90 99.36
Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -250,508.00 -1,604.10 -1,604.10 -248,903.90

Dept 500-4500 PARK DEVELOPMENT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 6,000.00 443.87 443.87 5,556.13 5,556.13 92.60
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 10,000.00 2,117.80 2,117.80 7,882.20 7,882.20 78.82
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 234,508.00 0.00 0.00 234,508.00 234,508.00 100.00

Dept 4500 Sub Totals: 250,508.00 2,561.67 2,561.67 247,946.33

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 250,508.00 1,604.10 1,604.10 248,903.90 248,903.90 99.36
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 250,508.00 2,561.67 2,561.67 247,946.33 247,946.33 98.98
Fund 500 Sub Totals: 0.00 957.57 957.57 -957.57

Fund 550 RV PARK FUND
Dept 550-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 108,500.00 11,582.25 11,582.25 96,917.75 96,917.75 89.33
Revenue Sub Totals: 108,500.00 11,582.25 11,582.25 96,917.75 96,917.75 89.33
Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -108,500.00 -11,582.25 -11,582.25 -96,917.75

Dept 550-5500
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 30,000.00 1,131.52 1,131.52 28,868.48 28,868.48 96.23
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 78,500.00 0.00 0.00 78,500.00 78,500.00 100.00

Dept 5500 Sub Totals: 108,500.00 1,131.52 1,131.52 107,368.48

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 108,500.00 11,582.25 11,582.25 96,917.75 96,917.75 89.33
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 108,500.00 1,131.52 1,131.52 107,368.48 107,368.48 98.96
Fund 550 Sub Totals: 0.00 -10,450.73 -10,450.73 10,450.73

Fund 580 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Dept 580-0000
R1

R1 Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 2,386.12 2,386.12 1,046,521.88 1,046,521.88 99.77
Revenue Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 2,386.12 2,386.12 1,046,521.88 1,046,521.88 99.77
Dept 0000 Sub Totals: -1,048,908.00 -2,386.12 -2,386.12 -1,046,521.88

Dept 580-5800 CAPITAL PROJECTS

Page 29 of 80



07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 60,000.00 0.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 100.00

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 988,908.00 0.00 0.00 988,908.00 988,908.00 100.00

Dept 5800 Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 0.00 0.00 1,048,908.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 2,386.12 2,386.12 1,046,521.88 1,046,521.88 99.77
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 0.00 0.00 1,048,908.00 1,048,908.00 100.00
Fund 580 Sub Totals: 0.00 -2,386.12 -2,386.12 2,386.12

Revenue Totals: 16,541,798.00 424,948.17 424,948.17 16,116,849.83 16,116,849.83 97.43
Expense Totals: 16,541,798.00 665,311.67 665,311.67 15,876,486.33 15,876,486.33 95.98
Report Totals: 0.00 240,363.50 240,363.50 -240,363.50

GL-Budget Status (8/9/2023 -  1:49 PM) Page 1

Page 30 of 80



CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
  P.O. BOX 940 / 215 NW PLEASANT ST 

MYRTLE CREEK, OR  97457 
BUSINESS:  541-863-5222 FAX:  541-863-6690 

 

                     Department Report July 2023 
 
 
Equipment 
The police department was able to sell the old Tasers to a company who 
refurbishes them and sells them back to law enforcement agencies, officers, and 
security officers.  The department received $1,060.00 for the 7 Tasers and 
equipment that went with them. 
 
Surplus Vehicle 
The 2014 Dodge Charger patrol vehicle that the council approved to be sold was 
auctioned at the I-5 auction and the city received $4,185.00.  
 
Summer Festival 
The police department led the Summer Festival Parade.  There appeared to be 
more participants in the parade than I have seen in the past.  The Summer Festival 
event went very well other than a few incidents that had to be addressed by the 
police department.  The police department booth handed out approximately 100 
free bicycle helmets and gave aways six scooters in the free raffle drawing. There 
was a total of 10 officers assigned to the event on Saturday due to the assistance 
from the Douglas County Sheriff’s Office, Winston Police Department, and 
Sutherlin Police Department.   
 
Calls For Service 
The police department responded to 256 calls for service, made 25 arrests, gave 62 
traffic warnings, and issued 67 traffic citations for the month of July. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Chief Jonathan Brewster  
Myrtle Creek Police 
 

Page 31 of 80



              2023 MCFD Call Responses
Call Type Ja

n
Feb

M
arc

h
April

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

Aug
Se

pt
O

ct
Nov

Dec
TO

TAL

MVA-Non Injury 3 1 1 2 2 2 6 17
MVA - UTL 1 1 1 3
MVA - Injury 2 1 1 3 7
MVA - Fatal 1 1 2
MVA - Cancelled 1 1 3 4 2 1 12
Medical Aid 5 7 3 6 11 6 7 45
Medical Aid - Cancelled 1 1 1 2 5
Public Assist 1 1 2 4
Public Assist-Lift Assist 9 7 10 10 4 11 3 54
Public Safety 1 2 2 1 1 10 17
Unattended Death 1 1 1 3
Fire/Carb Alarm 1 1 1 1 4
False Alarm Activation 1 2 3
Alarm Testing 1 1
Flue Fire 1 1
Fire - Vehicle 1 1 1 2 5
Fire 1 1 1 3
Fire - Illegal Burn 1 2 4 3 10
Fire - Controlled Burn 2 3 1 6
Fire - UTL 1 1 1 1 3 6 4 17
Fire-Nat Cover 1 2 2 5
Fire - Cancelled 1 2 2 1 6
Structure Fire 2 4 1 2 1 4 2 16
Structure Fire - Cancelled 2 2 4 2 2 1 13
Structure Fire -Commercial 2 2 1 1 1 7
Over Bank Rescue 0
Water Rescue 0
Water/Over Bank-Cancelled 1 1

        TOTAL 33 32 29 38 36 46 53 0 0 0 0 0 267

Page 32 of 80



Public Works and Parks  
August 15, 2023 Activities Report  

• Streets 
o 12 Utility Locates in the month of July 
o Weekly downtown garbage collection 
o Regular street sweeping 
o Continued weekly street maintenance focusing on pothole repairs  
o Street striping 
o Vegetation removal in Right-of-Ways 
o Installed new stop signs at Plaza  

 
• Sewer 

o Weekly lift station maintenance 
o Sewer line connection to new home on Morrison 
o Right-of-Way mowing and clearing 

 
• Water 

o 22 delinquent water turnoffs in July 
o Monthly meter reads 
o  service line repair 

 Broadway 
 

• Public Works Misc. 
o Tall grass abatement  

 Spruce Street 
 Johnson Street 

o Set-up and tear-down for Summer Festival 
o Haul wood debris form public works yard to Phil Johnson’s pit 

 
• Parks and Public Building Department 

o Monthly park maintenance 
o Set-up and tear-down for Summer Festival 
o Finished work on food truck seating area irrigation and seeding 
o Daily chemical check at the pool 

 

Page 33 of 80



• Water Treatment 
o South Umpqua River Plant produced 32.245 (MG) - 31 days of operation 
o Ramped up production rate of 1100 GPM  

 
 

• Wastewater Treatment 
o Total effluent flow to the South Umpqua River = 0 M.G.  
o Total Effluent flow to the M.C. Golf Course = 16.104 M.G.  
o Myrtle Creek influent flow = 6.590 M.G.  
o Tri-City Influent Flow = 8.073 M.G.  
o Total Effluent  = 16.104 M.G.  

 

Page 34 of 80



Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
Agenda item: Stevenson Street Paving Project 

Meeting Date: August 15, 2023 Primary Staff Contact: Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Public Works E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.: Secondary Contact: 

Issue before the Council:   

Approval of contract for paving portion of Stevenson Street. 

Staff Recommendation:  

Staff recommends the approval to award contract to pave Stevenson St to Stratton Brothers. In addition 
accept their recommendation to replace two catch basins. 

Background: 

A portion of the pavement on Stevenson Street has fully failed. The City has solicited three bids to 
repair the section of Stevenson Street. The work involves removing a 120 ft by 30 ft section of asphalt 
and repaving.  Upon inspection Stratton Brothers also made the recommendation to replace two catch 
basins in the work area.  Upon inspection City staff agrees with this recommendation. 

Related City Policies:  

Procurement policy 

Fiscal Impact:  

$22,024, the cost of the asphalt replacement and installation of two new catch basins. 

Council Options: 

Council can award the full contract to Stratton Brothers as recommended by Staff. 
Council can award the paving portion only to Stratton Brothers. 
Council can award the contract to another contractor. 
Council can reject all bids and not have Stevenson Street repaired.  

Potential Motion: 

I make the motion to award the contract for the paving and catch basin replacement on Stevenson 
Street to Stratton Brothers in the amount of $22,024. 

Page 1 of 1    
Page 35 of 80



Page 36 of 80



 

Page 37 of 80



Page 38 of 80



Page 39 of 80



Page 40 of 80



Page 41 of 80



Page 42 of 80



Page 43 of 80



 

Page 1 of 1                                                                                                                                                                                 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Avista Franshise Agreement – ORD 853 
Meeting Date: August 15, 2023 Primary Staff Contact:  Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Administration E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.:  Secondary Contact:   
    

 
Issue before the Council:   

 
Approval of Ordinance #853  An ordinance approving the new Avista Utility Franchise Agreement. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends the approval of Ordinance #853, an ordinance approving the new Avista Utility 
Franchise Agreement 
 
Background:   
 
The current Avista Franchise Agreement is set to expire the end of this year.  Avista and City Staff 
have been in negotiation on the new contract.  The term of the new agreement will be 10 years.  The 
payment will remain the same at 6% gross revenues from sales inside city limits. A few minor changes 
were made to the contract but for the most part the terms are very similar to the existing contract.  
   
Related City Policies:  
 
Franchise 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
City is to receive 6% of gross revenues from Avista gas sold inside Myrtle Creek city limits. 
 
Council Options: 
 
Council can approve the first read of Ordinance 853 as presented. 
Council can request negotiations continue with recommendations for agreement changes. 
Council can decline a franchise agreement to Avista Utilities and not approve Ordinance 853.  
 
 
Potential Motion: 
 
I make the motion to Approve the first read of Ordinance 853 An ordinance granting Avista 
Corporation, dba Avista Utilities, a Washington Corporation, it’s successors and assigns, the 
nonexclusive right, privilege, authority, and franchise to locate construct, install, own, maintain, 
repair, replace, extend, operate and use facilities in, upon, over, under, along, and across the 
franchise area for purposes of transmission, distribution, and sales of gas. 

Page 44 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 1 of 15  

CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK, OREGON 

ORDINANCE NO. 853 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING AVISTA CORPORATION, d/b/a AVISTA UTILITIES, 
A WASHINGTON CORPORATION, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, THE 
NONEXCLUSIVE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AUTHORITY AND FRANCHISE TO 
LOCATE, CONSTRUCT, INSTALL, OWN, MAINTAIN, REPAIR, REPLACE, 
EXTEND, OPERATE AND USE FACILITIES IN, UPON, OVER, UNDER, ALONG, 
AND ACROSS THE FRANCHISE AREA FOR PURPOSES OF THE 
TRANSMISSION, DISTRIBUTION AND SALE OF GAS. 

 

WHEREAS, Avista Corporation dba Avista Utilities (“Avista”), a Washington Corporation, which is 
authorized to do business within the state of Oregon has filed with the City of Myrtle Creek, State of 
Oregon (the "City") a written application for a renewal of its Franchise to locate, construct, operate, 
maintain and use such plants, works, underground pipelines, equipment and appurtenances over, 
under, along and across all of the City's rights of way and public property in the City for the purposes 
of the transmission, distribution and sale of Gas; and the City has determined it is in the interest of 
persons and businesses in this jurisdiction to have access to Avista's services; and 

 

WHEREAS, Avista is engaged in the business of providing utility services to customers 
consistent with applicable laws and regulations, and the City has determined it is in the interest of 
persons and businesses in this jurisdiction to have access to Avista's services; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MYRTLE CREEK CITY COUNCIL HEREBY ORDAINS, that Avista 
Corporation, its successors and assigns, is granted a non-exclusive franchise in the City of Myrtle 
Creek, State of Oregon, on the terms and conditions set forth below: 

 

SECTION 1.0   DEFINITIONS 

For the purposes of this Franchise the following terms, phrases, words and their derivations 
shall have the meaning given in this Section. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in 
the present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in the 
singular include the plural. Words not defined shall be given their common and ordinary meaning. 

Avista: means Avista Corporation, dba Avista Utilities, a Washington corporation, and its respective 
successors and assigns, agents and contractors. 

City: means the City of Myrtle Creek, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, and its 
respective successors and assigns. 

Commission: means the Oregon Public Utility Commission or such successor regulatory agency 
having jurisdiction over investor-owned public utilities in the State of Oregon.  

Days: means business days, unless otherwise noted. 

Page 45 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 2 of 15  

Effective Date: means thirty (30) calendar days from final passage of this Ordinance, provided that 
it has been duly accepted by Avista, upon which the rights, duties and obligations of this Franchise 
shall come into effect, and the date from which the time requirement for any notice, extension and/or 
renewal shall be measured. 

Facilities: means, collectively, any and all Gas transmission, and distribution systems and 
appurtenances owned by Avista, now and in the future in the Franchise Area, including but not 
limited to, Gas plants, Gas pipes, (pipelines, mains, laterals, conduits, and services) regulators, 
valves, meters, meter-reading  devices, fences, barricades, structures, vehicular protection 
devices, communication systems and control systems and other equipment, appliances, fixtures, 
attachments, appurtenances and other items necessary, convenient, or in any way appertaining 
to any and all of the foregoing for the purposes of transmission, distribution and sale of Gas. 

Franchise: means the grant by the City of rights, privileges and authority embodied in this Ordinance.. 

Franchise Area: means the surface and space above and below all public property and rights-of-
way owned or held by the City, including, without limitation, rights-of-way for public roads, streets, 
avenues, alleys, bridges, tunnels, City-owned public utility easements, and highways that may 
hereafter be constructed, platted, dedicated, acquired or improved within the present corporate limits 
of the City and as such limits may be extended by annexation or otherwise during the term of this 
Franchise; all City-owned public utility easements dedicated for the placement and location of 
various utilities, provided such easements would permit Avista to fully exercise the rights granted 
under this Franchise within the area covered by the easement. 

Gas: means natural, manufactured, and/or mixed gases. 

Gross Revenues: Except as otherwise provided in OAR 860-022-0040, “gross revenue(s)” means 
revenues received from utility operations within the City, less related net uncollectables. Gross 
revenues of an energy utility shall include revenues from the use, rental, or lease of the utility’s 
operating facilities other than residential-type space and water heating equipment. Gross revenues 
shall not include proceeds from the sale of bonds, mortgage or other evidence of indebtedness, 
securities or stocks, sales at wholesale by one utility to another utility purchasing the service is not 
the ultimate customer. 

Maintenance. Maintaining. or maintain: means, without limit, repairing, replacing upgrading, 
examining, testing, inspecting, and removing Avista Facilities, vegetation management, digging and 
excavating, and restoration of affected Right-of-way surfaces. 

Parties: means City and Avista collectively.  

Party: means either City or Avista individually. 

Person: means a business entity or natural person. 

Right-of-way: means the surface of and the space along, above, and below any street, road, 
highway, freeway, bridge, tunnel, lane, sidewalk, alley, City-owned public utility easement and/or 
right-of-way now or hereafter held or administered by the City within its corporate limits. 

State: means the State of Oregon. 

Tariff: means the rate schedules, rules, and regulations relating to utility service, filed with and 
approved by the Commission in effect upon execution and throughout the term of this Franchise. 

Page 46 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 3 of 15  

SECTION 2.0   GRANT OF FRANCHISE 
 

2.1 Grant 

The City hereby grants to Avista the right, power, privilege and authority to enter 
upon all public roads, rights-of-way, streets, alleys, highways, or structures, lying 
within the Franchise Area to locate, construct, operate and maintain its Facilities for 
the purpose of controlling, distributing, storing, and transmitting Gas, as may be 
necessary to provide Gas service. 

2.2 Effective Date 

This ordinance will be effective as of the date of approval, passage and publication as required by 
law, provided Avista has signed and returned the acceptance form as required and included as part 
of this ordinance. 

2.3 Term 

2.3.1 The rights, privileges and Franchise granted to Avista will extend for an initial term of ten 
(10) years from the Effective Date, and may automatically extend for successive one (1) year 
terms unless (a) a new agreement is entered into; (b) this Franchise is renewed for a 10-year 
term subject to 2.3.2 below; (c) the Franchise is terminated by agreement between the Parties; 
or (d) either party provides the other party not less than one hundred eighty (180) days prior 
written notice of its intent not to renew a successive term. 

2.3.2 At the end of the Franchise term, if the City and Avista are negotiating another franchise 
and have not concluded their negotiations, Avista's rights and responsibilities shall be controlled 
by this Franchise until the City grants a new franchise and Avista accepts it. If Avista does not 
accept the new franchise within ninety (90) days of its adoption, this Franchise shall expire. 

2.3.3 In the event a Party desires to renew the Franchise as provided in 2.3.1(b) above, such 
party shall notify the other Party in writing a request to renew for a ten (10) year period prior to 
the end of the initial term. If both Parties mutually agree to such a renewal, the renewal date shall 
commence the day immediately following the expiration date of the initial term, and all terms and 
conditions of the Franchise shall remain the same, except the effective date of such term. 

2.4 Non-Exclusive Franchise 

This Franchise is not an exclusive Franchise. This Franchise shall not in any manner prohibit the 
City from granting other and further franchises within the Franchised Area that do not interfere with 
Avista’s rights under this Franchise. This Franchise shall not prohibit or prevent the City from using 
the Franchised Area or affect the jurisdiction of the City over the same or any part thereof. The City 
shall not, however, award a Gas Franchise to another party under more favorable or less onerous 
terms than those of this Franchise without this Franchise being amended to reflect such more 
favorable or less onerous terms. 

2.5 Assignment of Franchise 

Avista shall have the right to assign its rights, benefits and privileges under this Franchise. Any 
assignee shall, within thirty (30) days of the date of any assignment, file written notice of the 
assignment with the City together with its written acceptance of all terms and conditions of this 
Franchise. As permitted by federal and state law and Commission regulation, Avista shall have the 

Page 47 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 4 of 15  

right, without notice to or consent of the City, to mortgage or hypothecate its rights, benefits and 
privileges in and under this Franchise as security for indebtedness.  

2.6 Payment of Franchise Fees 
 

2.6.1 Franchise Fee 

In consideration of the rights, privileges, and franchise granted by City to Avista under 
this Franchise, Avista will pay the City six percent (6%) of Avista’s gross revenues derived 
from service to customers located within the City (the “Franchise Fee”). Avista will pay 
the Franchise Fee in quarterly installments, which quarterly installments will be due not 
later than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter to which the payment relates.  

2.6.2 Payments 

Contemporaneously with each quarterly payment, Avista will file with the City a sworn 
statement describing the total gross revenues Avista received during the applicable 
quarter (the “Accounting Statement”). The City’s acceptance of any payments under this 
Section 2.6 will not constitute a waiver by the City of any Avista breach of this Franchise. 
If Avista fails to pay the entire amount of compensation due the City through error or 
otherwise, the difference due the City shall be paid by Avista within thirty (30) days from 
discovery of the error or determination of the correct amount. Any overpayment to the 
City through error or otherwise shall be offset against the next payment due from Avista. 

In the event of the expiration or termination of this Franchise, Avista shall pay the 
compensation as required in ORS 221.450 in quarterly installments, which quarterly 
installments will be due not later than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter to 
which the payment relates. 

2.6.3 Inspection of Books and Records 

On ten (10) days’ advance written notice to Avista, the City may review such Avista books, 
records, documentation, and/or information that the City reasonably determines 
necessary or appropriate to audit an Accounting Statement and/or ascertain Avista’s 
compliance with this Franchise. Avista will cooperate with the City in conducting any 
inspection and/or audit in-person, by mail or electronic means and will correct any 
discrepancies affecting the City’s interest in a prompt and efficient manner. Avista will 
facilitate access to all its books, records, documentation, and/or information at its 
Roseburg, Oregon District office. 

2.6.4 Equality of Franchise Fees and Costs 

In the event that the City increases charges as prescribed by law upon Avista for any 
fees, taxes or other costs in connection with the issuance, maintenance, existence, 
continuation, and/or use of the Franchise or public right-of-way granted herein, the City 
shall impose equivalent charges for any fees, taxes or other costs upon any and all other 
franchisee(s) doing the same business as or competing with Avista. In the event the City 
does not impose equivalent charges upon other franchisee(s) doing the same business 
as or competing with Avista, the City will charge Avista the fee imposed upon Avista prior 
to the increase until all franchisee(s) doing the same business as or competing with Avista 
are charged the same. 

Page 48 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 5 of 15  

SECTION 3.0   AVISTA’S OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

3.1 Compliance with Laws, Regulations, Codes and Standards 

In carrying out any authorized activities under the privileges granted by this Franchise, Avista shall 
meet accepted industry standards and codes and shall comply with all applicable laws, regulations 
and ordinances of any governmental entity with jurisdiction over Avista’s Facilities in the Franchise 
Area. This includes all applicable, laws, regulations and ordinances existing as of the Effective Date 
or may be subsequently enacted by any governmental entity with jurisdiction over Avista’s 
operations within the Franchise Area. The City shall have the right to make and enforce reasonable 
rules and regulations that are not discriminatory in nature pertaining to the conduct of Avista’s 
operations within the Franchise Area. Prior to the adoption of any new rule, procedure or policy, 
Avista shall be provided a written draft document for comment with a response period of not less 
than thirty days. Service shall be supplied to the City and its inhabitants in accordance with Avista’s 
rules and regulations and Tariffs currently or subsequently filed with and approved by the 
Commission. 

3.2 Facility Location by Avista and Non-Interference  

Avista shall have the discretion to determine the placement of its Facilities as may be necessary to 
provide safe and reliable Gas service within the Franchise Area, subject to the following non-
interference requirements. All construction, installation, repair or relocation of Avista’s Facilities 
performed by Avista in the Franchise Area will be done in such a manner as not to interfere with the 
construction and maintenance of other utilities, drains, drainage and irrigation ditches and 
structures, and City-owned property within the Franchise Area.  

3.3 Facility Location Information  

Avista shall provide the City, upon the City's reasonable request, Facility location information in 
electronic or hard copy showing the location of its Facilities at specific locations within the 
Franchised Area, to the extent such information is reasonably available. Avista does not warrant the 
accuracy of any such Facility location information provided and, to the extent the location of Facilities 
are shown, such Facilities may be shown in their approximate location. With respect to any 
excavations within the Franchise Area undertaken by or on behalf of Avista or the City, nothing 
stated in this Franchise is intended (nor shall be construed) to relieve either party of their respective 
obligations arising under the State one-call law with respect to determining the location of existing 
underground utility facilities in the vicinity of such excavations prior to commencing work. 

3.4 Vegetation Management –Removal of Trees/Vegetation Encroachment 

The right of Avista to maintain its Facilities shall include the right, as exercised in Avista's 
professional discretion to minimize the likelihood that encroaching (either above or below the 
ground) vegetation can interfere with or limit access to Avista’s Facilities, or pose a threat to public 
safety and welfare. Avista or its agents may accordingly remove or limit, without recourse or payment 
of compensation at its sole expense, the growth of vegetation which encroaches upon its Facilities 
and/or Gas transmission and distribution corridors within the Franchise Area.  

3.5 Right of Excavation 

For the purpose of implementing the privileges granted under this Franchise, and after any required 
notification is made to the City, Avista is authorized to make any necessary excavations in, under 

Page 49 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 6 of 15  

and across the streets, alleys, roads, rights-of-way and public grounds within the Franchise Area. 
Such excavation shall be carried out with reasonable dispatch and with as little interference with or 
inconvenience to the public as may be feasible. Avista shall remove all debris stemming from 
excavation and construction. The Right-of-way surface shall be restored by Avista after excavation, 
in accordance with applicable City and Avista specifications.  

Prior to performing such work, Avista shall obtain all legally required permits, including the opening 
or disturbance of any Right-of-way within the Franchise Area. The City shall cooperate with Avista 
in granting any permits required, providing such grant and subsequent construction by Avista shall 
not unduly interfere with the use of such Rights-of-way. Avista shall adhere to all building and zoning 
codes currently or hereafter applicable to construction, operation or maintenance of the Gas 
Franchise in the Franchise Area, provided that such codes are of general applicability and such 
codes are uniformly and consistently applied by the City as to other public utility companies and 
other entities operating in the City. Avista shall bore under Rights-of-way rather than cut unless prior 
approval to the contrary is obtained by Avista from the City. The payment of any generally applicable 
and non-discriminatory right-of-way permit fees, street cutting fees, or development permit fees may 
be required in addition to payment of the Franchise Fee herein. 

In case any obstruction caused by Avista shall remain longer than ten (10) business days after 
notice to remove it, or in case of neglect by Avista to safeguard any dangerous places, the City may 
remove such obstruction or safeguard such dangerous places at the expense of Avista. 

3.6 Emergency Work 

In the event of an emergency requiring immediate action by Avista to protect the public health and 
safety or for the protection of its Facilities, or the property of the City or other persons in the 
Franchise Area, Avista may immediately proceed with excavation or other Right-of-way work, with 
concurrent notice to the City to the extent possible.  

 

SECTION 4.0   RESERVATION OF CITY'S RIGHTS AND POWERS 

4.1. Reservation of Right 

The City, in granting this Franchise, does not waive any rights which it may not have or may 
subsequently acquire with respect to road rights-of-way or other property of the City under this 
Franchise, and this Franchise shall not be construed to deprive the City of any such powers, rights 
or privileges which it now has or may hereafter acquire to regulate the use of and to control the 
City’s roads, rights-of-way and other public property covered by this Franchise. Nothing in the terms 
of this Franchise shall be construed or deemed to prevent the City from exercising at any time and 
any power of eminent domain granted to it under the laws of this State. 

4.2 Necessary Construction/Maintenance by City 

The installation, construction, operation and maintenance of Avista's Facilities authorized by this 
Franchise shall not preclude the City, its agents or its contractors, from grading, excavating, or doing 
other necessary road work contiguous to Avista’s Facilities, provided that Avista shall be given not 
less than ten (10) business days' notice of said work, except in events of emergency when there 
exists an unforeseen and substantial risk or threat to public health, safety, welfare, or waste of 
resources in which case the City will make reasonable efforts to contact Avista prior to doing said 

Page 50 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 7 of 15  

work; and provided further that the City, its agents and contractors, shall be liable for any damages, 
including any consequential damages to third parties, caused by said work to any Facilities 
belonging to Avista, up to the amount of liability under the Oregon Tort Claims Act. 

4.3 Expansion of Avista’s Facilities 

Facilities in the City’s Franchise Area that are incidental to the Franchise Area, or that have been, 
or are at any future time acquired, newly constructed, leased, or utilized in any manner by Avista 
shall be subject to all provisions of this Franchise. 

4.4 Change of Boundaries of the City 

Any subsequent additions or modifications of the boundaries of the City, whether by annexation, 
consolidation or otherwise, shall be subject to the provisions of this Franchise as to all such areas.  

4.5 Removal of Abandon Facilities 

During the Term of this Franchise, or upon a revocation or non-renewal of this Franchise, the City 
may direct Avista to remove designated abandoned Facilities from the Franchise Area at its own 
expense and as soon as practicable, but only where such abandoned Facilities constitute a 
demonstrated threat to public health and safety or interferes with the City’s facilities If it becomes 
necessary for the City to do so, the City  shall be paid the reasonable and actual costs of removal 
by Avista, which shall include any penalty set by the Myrtle Creek Municipal Code for failure to 
remove such obstruction from the public way. 

4.6 Vacation of Properties by the City 

If, at any time, the City shall vacate any road, right of way or other public property which is subject 
to rights granted by this Franchise, to the extent permitted by law, such vacation shall be subject to 
the reservation of a perpetual utility easement to Avista for the purpose of constructing, 
reconstructing, operating, maintaining, repairing and upgrading Avista’s Facilities that exist at the 
tim of vacation. The City shall, in its vacation procedure, reserve said easement to Avista for Avista’s 
Facilities and shall also expressly prohibit any use of the vacated properties which will interfere with 
the Avista’s full enjoyment and use of said easement. 

 

SECTION 5.0   RELOCATION OF AVISTA’S FACILITIES 

5.1 Relocation of Facilities Requested by City 

Upon request of the City, Avista shall relocate its Facilities as necessary within the Franchise Area 
as specifically designated in design plans that are no less than sixty (60) percent complete by the 
City for such purpose. For purposes of this provision, all reasonable efforts shall be made by the 
City, with input from Avista, to minimize the impacts of potential relocation. The City shall provide 
Avista reasonable notice of any intended or expected requirement or request to relocate Avista’s 
Facilities, but not less than ninety (90) calendar days prior to any such relocation and, depending 
on the circumstances, may be greater than one hundred twenty (120) calendar days if necessary to 
allow Avista sufficient time to arrange for relocation upon approval of the City. In cases of emergency 
or not otherwise reasonably foreseeable by the City, the notice requirements of this Section may be 
shortened by discussion and agreement between the Parties. The City shall use reasonable efforts 
to cause any such relocation to be consistent with any applicable long-term development plan(s) of 
the City.  

Page 51 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 8 of 15  

In the event a City requested relocation forces Avista off City’s existing Public Right(s) of Way then 
the City shall accommodate such relocation by securing an acceptable, alternate location for utilities 
and removing any obstructions, including, without limitation, trees, vegetation, or other objects that 
may interfere with the installation, operation, repair, upgrade or maintenance of Avista’s Facilities 
on the affected property. 

If the City requires the subsequent relocation of any of Avista’s Facilities within three (3) years from 
the date of relocation of such Facilities or installation of new Facilities, the City shall bear the entire 
cost of such subsequent relocation. 

Avista agrees to relocate all Facilities promptly within a reasonable time. Upon notice from the City, 
the parties agree to meet and determine a reasonable relocation time, which shall not exceed the 
time normally needed for construction projects of the nature of the City’s relocation request unless 
otherwise mutually agreed. 

This Section shall not apply to Facilities in place pursuant to private easement held by Avista, 
regardless of whether such Facilities are also located within the Franchise Area. In the event the 
City requests relocation of Facilities that are in place pursuant to an existing private easement, said 
relocation shall be treated in the same manner as a relocation requested by third parties under 
Section 5.2, below, with the City bearing the expense of relocation. 

5.2 Relocation of Facilities Requested by Third Parties 

The City acknowledges that Avista is obligated to provide gas service and related line extension or 
relocation of Facilities for the benefit of its customers and to require compensation for such services 
on a non-preferential basis in accordance with applicable Tariffs. 

If Facilities are to be relocated at the request of or for the main benefit of a third party, the City shall 
not require Avista to relocate its Facilities until such time as a suitable location can be found and the 
third party has entered into an agreement to reimburse Avista for its reasonable costs of relocation. 

5.3 Availability of Other Funds 

In the event the City applies for federal, state or other non-City funding for right-of-way 
improvements, the City shall make a reasonable effort to include funding for utility relocation 
purposes, provided such funds do not interfere with the City’s right to obtain the same or similar 
funds, or otherwise create any expense or detriment to the City. The City may recover all costs, 
including internal costs, associated with obtaining such funds. 

 

SECTION 6.0   INDEMNITY 

6.1 Indemnification of City 

Avista agrees to defend and indemnify the City, its appointed and elected officers and employees 
or agents, from any and all liabilities, claims, causes of action, losses, damages and expenses, 
including costs and reasonable attorney fees, that the City may sustain, incur, become liable for, or 
be required to pay, as a consequence of or arising from the negligent acts or omissions of Avista, 
its officers, employees, agents, contractors in connection with Avista’s obligations under this 
Franchise; provided, however, that this indemnification provision shall not apply to the extent that 
said liabilities, claims, damages and losses were caused by or result from the negligence of the City, 
elected officers and employees or agents. Liability of City is limited to the extent of the City’s liability 

Page 52 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 9 of 15  

under the Oregon Tort Claims Act. 

6.2 Indemnification of Avista 

To the extent permitted by law, City agrees to defend and indemnify Avista, its officers and 
employees, from any and all liabilities, claims, causes of action, losses, damages and expenses, 
including costs and reasonable attorneys fees, that  Avista may sustain, incur, become liable for, or 
be required to pay, as a consequence of or arising from the negligent acts or omissions of the City, 
its appointed and elected officers and employees  or agents in connection with City’s obligations 
under this Franchise; provided, however, that this indemnification provision shall not apply to the 
extent that said liabilities, claims, damages, losses and so forth were caused by or result from the 
negligence of Avista, its employees or agents. 

 

SECTION 7.0 INSURANCE 

7.1 Avista shall secure and maintain automobile, comprehensive general liability and property 
damage insurance that protects Avista and the City, as well as the City’s officers, agents, employees 
and volunteers as follows: 

7.1.1 Comprehensive general liability insurance with limits not less than ten million dollars 
($10,000,000) for bodily injury or death to each person; ten million dollars ($10,000,000) 
for property damage resulting from any one accident; and, ten million dollars 
($10,000,000) for all other types of liability. 

7.1.2 Commercial automobile liability for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles with a limit of 
one million dollars ($1,000,000) for each person and three million dollars ($3,000,000)for  
each accident. 

7.1.3 Comprehensive form premises-operations, explosions and collapse hazard and 
underground hazard with limits of not less than ten million dollars ($10,000,000), which 
may be included in the general liability policy. 

7.2 The liability insurance policies required by this Franchise shall be maintained by Avista 
throughout the term of this Franchise, and such other period of time during which the licensee is 
engaged in the removal of its Facilities. Upon request, Avista shall furnish certificates of insurance 
acceptable to the City. The certificate shall include the deductible or retention level. 

7.3 The insurance policies may provide for self-retention or deductibles in reasonable amounts. 
The limits of the insurance shall be subject to statutory changes as to maximum limits of liability 
imposed on municipalities of the State of Oregon during the term of this Franchise. 

7.4 The insurance shall be without prejudice to coverage otherwise existing and shall name as an 
additional insured the City and its officers, agents, volunteers, and employees. Notwithstanding the 
naming of an additional insured, the insurance shall protect each insured in the same manner as 
though a separate policy had been issued to each, but nothing in this Section shall operate to 
increase the insurer's liability as set forth elsewhere in the policy beyond the amount or amounts for 
which the insurer would have been liable if only one person or interest had been named as insured. 
The coverage must apply as to claims between those insured on the policy. 

7.5 The insurance shall provide that the insurance shall not be canceled or materially altered 
without thirty (30) days' prior written notice first being given to the City. If the insurance is canceled 

Page 53 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 10 of 15  

or materially altered within the term of this Franchise, Avista shall provide a replacement policy with 
the same terms. Avista shall maintain continuous uninterrupted coverage, in the terms and amounts 
required, upon and after the effective date of this Franchise. 

 

SECTION 8.0 FRANCHISE DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

8.1 Non-waiver   

Failure of a Party to declare any breach or default of this Franchise immediately upon the occurrence 
thereof, or delay in taking any action in connection therewith, shall not waive such breach or default, 
but the Party shall have the right to declare any such breach or default at any time. Failure of a Party 
to declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the Party’s right to declare another 
breach or default. In addition, the pursuit of any right or remedy by the City shall not prevent the City 
from thereafter declaring a revocation and forfeiture for breach of the conditions of the Franchise. 

8.2 Dispute Resolution by the Parties 

Disputes regarding the interpretation or execution of the terms of this Franchise that cannot be 
resolved by department counterparts representing the Parties, shall be submitted to the City’s 
Attorney and an attorney representing Avista for resolution. If a mutually satisfactory or timely 
resolution cannot then be reached by the above process, prior to resorting to a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the Parties shall submit the dispute to a non-binding alternate dispute resolution process 
agreed to by the Parties.  

8.3 Right of Enforcement 

No provision of this Franchise shall be deemed to bar the right of the City or Avista to seek judicial 
relief from a violation of any provision of the Franchise to recover monetary damages for such 
violations by the other party or to seek enforcement of the other Party’s obligations under this 
Franchise by means of specific performance, injunctive relief or any other remedy at law or in equity 
pursuant to Section 8.4. Any litigation between the City and Avista arising under or regarding this 
Franchise shall occur, if in the state courts, in a court of competent jurisdiction, and if in the federal 
courts, in the United States District Court for the District of Oregon. 

8.4 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs 

Each Party shall pay for its own attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in any dispute resolution process 
or legal action arising out of the existence of this Franchise. 

 

SECTION 9.0   GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 Franchise as Contract, No Third Party Beneficiaries 

This Franchise is a contract between the Parties and binds and benefits the Parties and their 
respective successors and assigns. This Franchise does not and is not intended to confer any rights 
or remedies upon any persons, entities or beneficiaries other than the Parties. 

9.2 Force Majeure 

In the event that Avista is delayed in or prevented from the performance of any of its obligations 
under the Franchise by circumstances beyond Avista’s control (Force Majeure) including, without 

Page 54 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 11 of 15  

limitation, third party labor disputes, fire, explosion, flood, earthquake, power outage, acts of God, 
war or other hostilities and civil commotion, pandemic, epidemic, or cyber attack, then Avista’s 
performance shall be excused during the period of the Force Majeure occurrence. Avista will use all 
commercially reasonable efforts to minimize the period of the disability due to the occurrence. Upon 
removal or termination of the occurrence Avista will promptly resume performance of the affected 
Franchise obligations in an orderly and expeditious manner. 

9.3 Prior Franchises Superseded 

As of the Effective Date, this Franchise shall supersede all prior gas franchises for the Franchise 
Area previously granted to Avista or its predecessors by City, and shall affirm, authorize and ratify 
all prior installations authorized by permits or other action not previously covered by prior Franchise. 
Termination of the prior Franchise shall not, however, relieve the Parties from any obligations which 
accrued under said Franchise prior to its termination, including but not limited to, any outstanding 
indemnity, reimbursement or administrative fee payment obligations. 

9.4 Severability 

The Franchise is granted pursuant to the laws of the State of Oregon relating to the granting of such 
rights and privileges by City. If any article, section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Franchise is 
for any reason held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of 
the Franchise or any of the remaining portions. The invalidity of any portion of this Franchise shall 
not abate, reduce, or otherwise affect any obligation required of the Parties. 

9.5 Changes or Amendments 

Changes or amendments to this Franchise shall not be effective until lawfully adopted by the City 
and agreed to by Avista. 

9.6 Supremacy and Governing Law 

This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in all respects in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Oregon. In the event of any conflict between this Franchise and any City 
ordinance, regulation or permit, the provisions of this Franchise shall control. In the event of a conflict 
between the provisions of this Franchise and Avista’s applicable Tariff on file with the Commission, 
the Tariff shall control. In the event a conflict exists between the terms of this Franchise and Avista’s 
Tariff with the Commission that cannot be resolved, Avista may suspend or abandon the rights and 
obligations of this Franchise upon reasonable notice to the City. 

9.7 Headings 

The headings or titles in this Franchise are for the purpose of reference only and shall not in any 
way affect the interpretation or construction of this Franchise. 

9.8 Acceptance of Franchise.   

Avista shall, within thirty (30) days after passage of this Ordinance, file with the City Recorder, its 
acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Franchise. 

9.9 Abandonment or Suspension of Franchise Rights and Obligations 

Avista may at any time abandon the rights and authorities granted hereunder, provided that six (6) 
months’ written notice of intention to abandon is given to the City. In addition, pursuant to Section 
9.6 and in the event a conflict exists between the terms of this Franchise and Avista’s Tariff with the 

Page 55 of 80



 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 12 of 15  

Commission that cannot be resolved, Avista may suspend or abandon the rights and obligations of 
this Franchise upon reasonable notice to the City. 

9.10 Forfeiture 

9.10.1 If Avista shall fail to comply with the terms of this Franchise, the City may serve upon 
Avista a written notice specifying the default.  Upon receipt of the notice Avista shall: (a) 
within 7 days, respond to the City's assertion(s) as to the alleged default and may request 
a meeting in accordance with Section 9.10.2 proceed to cure the default within ninety (90) 
days; or (c) notify the City that Avista cannot cure the default within ninety (90) days, due 
to the nature of the alleged default but will commence the cure. If Avista intends to cure 
the default, Avista shall notify the City in writing of the actions that will be taken and the 
projected completion date. If the default results in Avista's failure to provide Gas services 
pursuant to Section 2.1, creates a danger to public health, safety and welfare as alleged 
under any applicable ordinance, statute, rule, or regulation promulgated by the City of 
Myrtle Creek, State of Oregon, or other governmental entity, Avista shall commence the 
cure notwithstanding the request for a meeting in accordance with Section 9.10. 

9.10.2 Upon written request in accordance with Section 9.10, the City shall promptly schedule a 
meeting between the City and Avista to discuss the alleged default. The City shall notify 
Avista of the meeting in writing and such meeting shall take place not less than five (5) 
days after Avista's receipt of notice of default. Each party shall appoint a representative 
who shall attend the meeting and be responsible for representing the party's interests. 
The representatives shall exercise good faith to resolve the dispute or reach agreement 
on any alleged default and/or any corrective action to be taken. Such "corrective action" 
may include establishing a reasonable cure period under Section 9.10. Any dispute 
(including any dispute concerning the existence of or any corrective action taken to cure 
any alleged default) that is not resolved by agreement within five (5) days following the 
conclusion of the meeting shall be resolved pursuant to Section 8.2. 

9.10.3 At the conclusion of the process provided for in Section 9.10.0 through 9.10.2 above, the 
City or Avista may: 

(a) Take any enforcement or corrective action provided by local, state or federal 
law; provided such action is not otherwise in conflict with the provisions of this 
Franchise; 

(b) Demand mediation and arbitration, pursuant to Section 8.2 of this Franchise; or 

(c) Take other such action at law or in equity as provided in Section 8.3. 

9.10.4 Unless otherwise agreed by the City and Avista in writing, the City and Avista shall, as 
may reasonably be practicable, continue to perform their respective obligations under this 
Franchise during the pendency of any dispute or legal proceeding. 

9.11 Venue 

This Franchise Agreement has been made entirely within the state of Oregon. If any suit or action 
is filed by any party to enforce this Franchise Agreement or otherwise with respect to the subject 
matter of this Agreement, venue shall be in the federal or state courts in Douglas County, Oregon. 

  

Page 56 of 80



 
____________________________________________________________________________

__ 
Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 13 of 15  

PASSED on the First Reading before the City Council this 15th day of August, 2023 
 
PASSED on the Second Reading before the City Council this ____day of ______, 2023 
 
APPROVED by the Mayor this _______ day of ______, 2023. 
 

 
 
 

       __________________________ 
       Matthew Hald, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Joanna Bilbrey 
City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 

***GRANTEE’S ACCEPTANCE ON FOLLOWING PAGE*** 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57 of 80



 
____________________________________________________________________________

__ 
Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 14 of 15  

 

Letter of Acceptance by Avista 
 

HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK, COUNTY OF DOUGLAS COUNTY, OREGON 

 

IN RE: City of Myrtle Creek,  Ordinance No. 853 

 

“Granting a Franchise to Avista Corporation for the Construction, 
Operation and Maintenance of Natural Gas Facilities Within the City.”  

 

 

Avista Corporation dba Avista Utilities, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby 
accepts the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement contained in the subject 
Ordinance and files this written acceptance with the City of Myrtle Creek. This acceptance 
is executed on ______________, 2023. 

       Avista Corporation dba Avista Utilities   

 

       By: _______________________ 

        Dennis Vermillion 

        President, Avista Utilities 

 

Copy Received for the City of Myrtle Creek 

 

On: _________________________ 

 

By: _________________________ 

      

      _________________________  

City Administrator 

Page 58 of 80



 
____________________________________________________________________________

__ 
Avista Utilities and City of Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement Ordinance No. 853    Page 15 of 15  

GAS FRANCHISE ORDINANCE SUMMARY FOR PUBLICATION 
 

NOTICE: CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK 

PROPOSED FRANCHISE ORDINANCE NO. 853 SUMMARY 

 

Ordinance No. 853 will grant Avista Corporation dba Avista Utilities a non-exclusive public 
utility franchise to locate, construct, install, own, maintain, repair, reconstruct, operate and 
use facilities within the City’s public right of way [the Franchise Area] for the purposes of 
the transmission, control and distribution of natural gas within the City for a term of 10 
years. Avista agrees to meet accepted industry standards and conform with applicable 
federal and state laws, as well as the regulations of the appropriate state regulatory body 
with jurisdiction, in the conduct of its operations under the Franchise. The City reserves 
the right to make reasonable rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct of Avista’s 
operations within the Franchise Area. Avista must not interfere with any existing facilities 
of other utilities. Avista is authorized to make necessary excavations within the Franchise 
Area; excavations must be carried out with reasonable dispatch, and the area restored, 
with as little interference to the public as may be reasonable. Avista must relocate its 
facilities in the Franchise Area at the City’s request. Avista may remedy encroachment of 
vegetation in connection with franchised activities. Provisions are made for informal 
dispute resolution. 

 

(Final Reading of Ordinance 853 is anticipated to be held before the Myrtle Creek City 
Council on September 5, 2023, at 5:30 in the City Council Chambers). 

Page 59 of 80



1 of 2 | City of Myrtle Creek Resolution No. RES-23-12  
 

CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK 
OREGON 

RESOLUTION NO RES-23-12 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK TO APPLY FOR 
A DEPARTMENT OF LAND CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT HOUSING 

PLANNING ASSISTANCE GRANT  
 

 
 

Whereas, House Bill 3395 addresses the housing need and requires local governments to 
amend their comprehensive plans and city codes to meet new zoning standards; and 

 
Whereas, the state has appropriated General Funds available through the Department of Land 

Conservation and Development in the form of grants to assist in the amending of local 
government comprehensive plans and municipal codes; and 
 

Whereas, the Department of Land Conservation and Development is accepting applications for 
the Housing Planning Assistance Grants & Consultant Support; and 

 
Whereas, the City of Myrtle Creek desires to participate in this grant program to assist with 

the costs associated with meeting the standards set by House Bill 3395; and 
 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Myrtle Creek City Council hereby 
authorizes the application to the Department of Land Conservation and Development for grant 
funds to assist with the costs associated with amending of the Myrtle Creek Comprehensive Plan 
and Myrtle Creek Municipal Code to comply with House Bill 3395.  
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this 15th day of August 2023. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR this 15th day of August 2023.  
 
 
                 
                 Matthew Hald, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
        
___________________________ 
Joanna Bilbrey 
City Recorder 

Page 60 of 80



Page 61 of 80



Page 62 of 80



Page 63 of 80



Page 64 of 80



Page 65 of 80



Page 66 of 80



Page 67 of 80



Page 68 of 80



Page 69 of 80



Page 70 of 80



Page 71 of 80



Page 72 of 80



Page 73 of 80



Page 74 of 80



Page 75 of 80



Page 76 of 80



Page 77 of 80



Page 78 of 80



Page 79 of 80



Page 80 of 80


	August 15, 2023 City Council Agenda.pdf
	July 18, 2023 City Council Minutes
	PUBLIC PRESENTATION

	City Council Budget Status July 2023
	Checks by date July 2023
	Community Development Department August 15 2023 Report
	Police Rpt July 2023
	2023 MCFD Response Report
	Sheet1

	Public Works 08-15-2023 Report
	Staff Report Stevenson St Paving
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Stevenson Street Paving Project


	Stevenson Paving Project Supporting Documents
	Photo's for Stevenson Streeet
	Friends of the Myrtle Creek Library Donation Request
	Ordinance 853 Avista Utilities_Myrtle Creek 2023 Franchise Agreement 2023 no mark up
	SECTION 1.0   DEFINITIONS
	2.3.1 The rights, privileges and Franchise granted to Avista will extend for an initial term of ten (10) years from the Effective Date, and may automatically extend for successive one (1) year terms unless (a) a new agreement is entered into; (b) this...
	2.3.2 At the end of the Franchise term, if the City and Avista are negotiating another franchise and have not concluded their negotiations, Avista's rights and responsibilities shall be controlled by this Franchise until the City grants a new franchis...
	2.3.3 In the event a Party desires to renew the Franchise as provided in 2.3.1(b) above, such party shall notify the other Party in writing a request to renew for a ten (10) year period prior to the end of the initial term. If both Parties mutually ag...

	SECTION 3.0   AVISTA’S OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
	3.1 Compliance with Laws, Regulations, Codes and Standards
	3.2 Facility Location by Avista and Non-Interference
	3.3 Facility Location Information
	3.4 Vegetation Management –Removal of Trees/Vegetation Encroachment
	3.5 Right of Excavation
	3.6 Emergency Work

	SECTION 4.0   RESERVATION OF CITY'S RIGHTS AND POWERS
	4.1. Reservation of Right

	SECTION 5.0   RELOCATION OF AVISTA’S FACILITIES
	SECTION 6.0   INDEMNITY
	6.1 Indemnification of City
	6.2 Indemnification of Avista

	SECTION 7.0 INSURANCE
	SECTION 8.0 FRANCHISE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	8.1 Non-waiver
	8.2 Dispute Resolution by the Parties
	8.3 Right of Enforcement
	8.4 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs

	SECTION 9.0   GENERAL PROVISIONS
	9.1 Franchise as Contract, No Third Party Beneficiaries
	9.2 Force Majeure
	9.3 Prior Franchises Superseded
	9.4 Severability
	9.5 Changes or Amendments
	9.6 Supremacy and Governing Law
	This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon. In the event of any conflict between this Franchise and any City ordinance, regulation or permit, the provisions of this Fr...
	9.7 Headings
	9.8 Acceptance of Franchise.
	9.9 Abandonment or Suspension of Franchise Rights and Obligations
	Avista may at any time abandon the rights and authorities granted hereunder, provided that six (6) months’ written notice of intention to abandon is given to the City. In addition, pursuant to Section 9.6 and in the event a conflict exists between the...
	9.10 Forfeiture
	9.11 Venue

	Letter of Acceptance by Avista
	GAS FRANCHISE ORDINANCE SUMMARY FOR PUBLICATION

	Staff Report Avista Gas Franchise Agreement
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Avista Franshise Agreement – ORD 853


	RES-23-12 Department of Land Conservation Consultant Support Grant
	CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK
	OREGON
	RESOLUTION NO RES-23-12
	ATTEST:
	___________________________
	Joanna Bilbrey
	City Recorder

	Coffenberry Grand Opening
	League of Oregon Cities Legislative Updates



